
 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 

 

Page | 1 

2018-07-16 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      RMLD Board of Commissioners             
 

Date:  2022-07-21 Time:  7:30 PM      
 

Building:  Reading Municipal Light Building Location:  Winfred Spurr Audio Visual Room 
 

Address:  230 Ash Street Agenda:                       
 

Purpose:  General Business 
 

Meeting Called By: Marlena Bita,  Chair 
 
 

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of 
operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an 
adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be 
discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda. 
 

All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted. 
 
Topics of Discussion: 
 
 

PER GOVERNOR BAKER’S MARCH 10, 2020, ORDER SUSPENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
OPEN MEETING LAW, G.L. c. 30A, §20 THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON, REMOTELY AND 

STREAMED ON RCTV AND YOUTUBE. https://www.youtube.com/c/RCTVStudios/videos?view=57.  
  

FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLEASE EMAIL: emorse@RMLD.com. INCLUDE YOUR FULL 
NAME, ADDRESS, AND PHONE # 

1. Call Meeting to Order – M. Bita, Chair 

Code of Conduct: The RMLD Board of Commissioners recognizes the 
importance of hearing public comment, at the discretion of the Chair, on 
items on the official agenda. Once recognized by the Chair, all persons 
addressing the Board shall state their name and address prior to 
speaking. It is the role of the Chair to maintain order in all public 
comment or ensuing discussion.  

 
2. Public Comment – Chair Bita 

• Citizens’ Advisory Board   
• Liaisons to the RMLD Board  
• Public Comment 

3. Report on the CAB Meeting – R. Coulter  
 

4. Approval of Meeting Minutes Attachment 1 ACTION ITEM - M. Bita, 
Chair 
Suggested Motion: Move that the Board of Commissioners approve the 
minutes of the March 24, 2022, meeting on the recommendation of the 
Interim General Manager.  

 

https://www.youtube.com/c/RCTVStudios/videos?view=57


 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 

 

Page | 2 

5. Interim General Manager’s Report –G. Phipps, Interim General Manager   
• Talent Acquisition and Talent Management  
• Flex Time Pilot 
• Email Communications – Town Website  

 
6. Communications Update Attachment 2 – J. Blackley, Communications 

Manager 
• Social Media  
• Welcome Letter  

 
7. Policy Review Attachment 3 – ACTION ITEM – G. Phipps, Interim 

General Manager  
• Policy 9 Procurement  

Suggested Motion: Move that the Board of Commissioners 
approve Policy 19: Procurement, as presented, on the 
recommendation of the Interim General Manager. 
 

• Policy 23 Dress Standards   
Suggested Motion: Move that the Board of Commissioners 
approve Policy 23: Dress Standards, as presented, on the 
recommendation of the Interim General Manager. 

 
8. Hydro Quebec Phase 1/Phase 11 Converter Attachment 4 – C. Underhill, 

Director of Special Projects  
 

9. RMLD Procurement Requests for Board Approval Attachment 5 –ACTION 
ITEM - H. Jaffari, Director of E&O  
 

• IFB 2022-24 – RMLD Substation 4 Transformer Testing and 
Repairs 
Suggested Motion: Move that IFB 2022-24 for RMLD Substation 
4 Transformer Testing and Repairs be awarded to Prolec-GE 
Waukesha, Inc. for $439,416.41, pursuant to M.G.L., c. 30 § 
39M, as the lowest responsible and eligible bidder, on the 
recommendation of the Interim General Manager.    
 

• IFP 2022-27 for 350 MCM CU 35kV EPR Underground Cable 
Suggested Motion: Move that IFP 2022-27 for for 350 MCM CU 
35kV EPR Underground Cable be awarded to: Arthur J. Hurley 
Company, Inc. for $194,880.00, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 164 § 56D, 
on the recommendation of the Interim General Manager. 
 

• IFP 2022-28 for 750 MCM 15kV Power Cable   
Suggested Motion: Move that IFP 2022-28 for for 750 MCM 
15kV Power Cable be awarded to: Arthur J. Hurley Company, Inc. 
for $95,667.00, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 164 § 56D, on the 
recommendation of the Interim General Manager. 

 
10.  GM Search Update – B. Coulter / D. Talbot   

 



Town of Reading 
Meeting Posting with Agenda 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 
at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 

Page | 3 

11. Scheduling – M. Bita, Chair

Subsequent Board Meetings 
September 15, 2022, 7:30 PM 
October 20, 2022, 7:30 PM 
November 17, 2022, 7:30 PM 
December 22, 2022, 7:30 PM 

Joint Economic Development Meeting 
August 30, 2022  

12. Adjournment – Chair Bita
Suggested Motion:  Move that the Board of Commissioners adjourn regular
session.  Note:  Roll call vote required.

BOARD MATERIALS AVAILABLE BUT NOT DISCUSSED
• Accounts Payable / Payroll Questions through 7/13/2022
• Financial Update through May 2022
• Surplus and Scrap Material Report June 2022



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READING MUNICIPAL 

LIGHT DEPARTMENT 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

Thursday July 21, 2022   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

MARCH 24, 2022  

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 

  



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      RMLD Board of Commissioners             
 

Date:  2022-03-24 Time:  7:00 PM      
 

Building:                       Location:                       
 

Address:                       Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:        Version:  Draft 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Mr. Robert Coulter, Chair; Mr. Philip Pacino, Vice Chair; Mr. John Stempeck, 
Commissioner.Mr. David Talbot, Commissioner; Ms. Marlena Bita, 
Commissioner.  
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

   
 

Others Present: 
 

RMLD Staff: Ms. Coleen O'Brien, General Manager; Mr. Greg Phipps, Director 
of Integrated Resources; Ms. Wendy Markiewicz, Director of Business 
Finance; Mr. Hamid Jaffari, Director of Engineering and Operations Ms. Erica 
Morse, Executive Assistant.  
 
Citizens' Advisory Board:Mr.Jason Small, CAB, North Reading. 
 
Presenters: Caroline Fischer, Cultural Solutions Group  
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Philip Pacino, Secretary Pro Tem 
 
 

Topics of Discussion: 
 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order  
Chair Coulter called the Board of Commissioner’s meeting to order at 7:00 PM and 
announced that the meeting would be held on Zoom and live on RCTV and YouTube. 
 
Opening Remarks and Introductions  
Chair Coulter read RMLD’s code of conduct and asked all attendees to identify themselves.  
 
Vice Chair Pacino served as Secretary at the meeting. 
 
Chair Coulter said Ms. O’Brien has announced her retirement; this news is very unfortunate 
for the RMLD. Chair Coulter stated that Ms. O’Brien has done a phenomenal job and he has 
great respect for her and all she does for the RMLD. Chair Coulter thanked Ms. O’Brien on 
behalf of the BOC; she will be missed.  
 
Mr. Talbot echoed Chair Coulter’s comments and thanked Ms. O’Brien.  
 
Mr. Stempeck said Ms. O’Brien has done a wonderful job over the past ten years reshaping 
and reforming the RMLD into something to be proud of moving forward. He is very sorry to 
see Ms. O’Brien’s retirement.  
 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

2 
 

Vice Chair Pacino said he is sorry to see Ms. O’Brien go. It was great working with her over 
the years; out of all the managers Vice Chair Pacino has had the privilege of serving, Ms. 
O’Brien has been the best.  
 
Ms. Bita said she appreciates all the one-on-one time Ms. O’Brien has generously offered 
and will miss more opportunities to work with her.  
 
Ms. O’Brien thanked the BOC for their sentiments.  
 

2. Public Comment 
Citizens’ Advisory Board 
Mr. Small stated that the CAB meeting has been postponed to 4/4/2022.  
 
Mr. Small congratulated Ms. O’Brien and said he has enjoyed working with her on the Board 
for the last few years. Ms. O’Brien said she is available as a resource and is always willing to 
help MLPs.  
 
Liaisons to RMLD Board 
There was no comment from the RMLD Board Liaisons at this meeting.  
 
Public Comment 
There was no comment from the public at this meeting. 

 
3. Approval of Board Minutes 

The January 19, 2022, regular session meeting minutes were approved by the Board as 
presented.  
 
Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Ms. Bita, move that the Board of 
Commissioners approve the meeting minutes of the January 19, 2022, meeting on the 
recommendation of the General Manager. 
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Chair Coulter, Aye; 
Mr. Talbot, Aye; Mr. Stempeck, Aye; Ms. Bita, Aye.  
 

4. General Manager’s Report      
Ms. O’Brien provided a General Manager’s report as follows:  
 
Community Update 
Press Releases  
Two press releases will be going out tomorrow: one announcing Ms. O’Brien’s retirement 
and another communicating the Kearsarge Battery Agreement.  

 
Ms. Mulvaney Resignation  
Ms. O’Brien said she is sad to announce that Ms. Mulvaney is taking a job at another 
company. Ms. Mulvaney is thankful for her time at the RMLD and has enjoyed working with 
everyone. Ms. Mulvaney has done an awesome job and the RMLD will miss her.  

 
Virtual Elementary Art Contest Awards Nights 
The awards nights were held earlier this month and were very successful; the artwork was 
inspirational. Ms. O’Brien thanked Chair Coulter, Vice Chair Pacino, and Mr. Talbot for their 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

3 
 

participation. 
 
High School Art Contest 
Artwork is due tomorrow (3/25); Ms. Mulvaney will send out a link to vote. The department 
will choose one or more winning pieces to be on the cover of the annual report.  

 
Board Elections 
Board Elections will be held at the 4/21/2022 meeting. The Board will appoint a Chair, Vice 
Chair, and Secretary. Per Policy 19; a commissioner cannot be appointed if up for re-
election within the year. Chair Coulter is the only commissioner up for re-election in 2023.  

 
Annual Report  
Ms. Markiewicz stated that the auditors are coming in on 4/4/2022.  

 
Ms. O’Brien said her evaluation packet contains the front-end materials of the annual report. 
Construction highlights and audited financials will go in the back of the annual report. The 
Audit Committee and BOC must approve the audited financials before they are included in 
the annual report. The RMLD is anticipating releasing the annual report by the end of May. 

 
Economic Development Meeting  
This meeting relates to the Economic Development of the Eastern Gateway /Ash Street. Ms. 
Morse tried diligently to schedule this meeting; due to March conflicts, the meeting will be 
held in April, possibly after the elections.  

 
Transformer Bid Meeting   
An additional meeting to discuss the transformer bid needs to occur before 4/10/22. The bid 
deadline is 4/11/22. There is an option for the BOC to join the CAB meeting on 4/4/2022. 
The bid has gone past the budgeted amount; Ms. O’Brien must go back to the CAB to get 
permission to do the bid, then back to the BOC for approval.  

 
5. Integrated Resources Report  

Mr. Phipps provided an integrated resource report as follows:  
 
5MW New Battery Storage at Fordham Road (Slide 3) 
The RMLD is proposing to add an additional 5 MW/ 10 MWH battery storage system, based 
on the success of the current battery system at station 3. The system will be installed 
adjacent to an existing solar array at an industrial site on Fordham Road,in Wilmington  The 
solar system was installed three years ago as part of the “Solar Choice” Program.  
 
Mr. Phipps stated that Kearsarge will make the initial investment and operate the system. 
The storage agreement is a similar structure as the solar agreement (PPA), where 
Kearsarge made the investment and continues to operate the solar array, while handling 
issues such as, panel maintenance etc. 
 
Mr. Phipps stated that the intention behind this project is to help reduce 
transmission/capacity costs which are 40% of RMLD’s total costs. The cost avoidance model 
predicts a total peak cost savings of ~ $1M annually. RMLD is not making the initial 
investment and is willing to share a high portion of savings with the investor; the investor 
takes on the technical and financial risk.  



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

4 
 

 
Although the RMLD prefers to own assets where possible, contracting these storage assets 
under a PPA allows the Department to avoid technology risk while benefiting from the 
shared savings. Net RMLD cost savings will average $200K annually with no net cost out 
and no downside. 
 
Once approved, the RMLD will draft an Energy Services Agreement (ESA version of a PPA); 
finish working on the interconnect analysis; confirm permitting, site access, safety, etc. The 
site will be commissioned by summer 2023. 
 
Questions arose regarding the structure of the agreement. Mr. Phipps responded as follows:  
 
RMLD is making a zero dollar ($0) initial investment. Kearsarge will be making the initial 
multimillion dollar investment, inclusive of proponents such as getting the battery in place, 
software etc.  Kearsarge is handling the lease of the land and insurance policies. Kearsarge 
is a reputable organization that has been around for some time; they manage the existing 
soalr array and several others in New England. Kearsarge handles everything and there is 
only a financial transaction on RMLD’s end. This is inclusive of battery augmentation which 
is needed to maintain the 5 MW output. There is no liability associated with the RMLD. The 
site is in an industrial area which provides an added safety benefit. 

 
There are two variables in a risk reward approach: size and duration of discharge. The 
current system configuration is designed to discharge 5 MW for a two-hour period, whereas 
a step up would discharge 5 MW every three hours. The wider window of 5 MW every two 
hours increases the probability for hitting peaks, which is more beneficial to the RMLD 
because this storage system will be a component of the peak shredding program.  
 
The project aligns with the anticipated addition of five (5) MW blocks and is tailored to the 
location size, load size, and dollars in term of financial return. RMLD is renting access to the 
equipment under a service arrangement; Kearsarge will take responsibility for the charge 
and discharge of the battery. This model is anticipated to be successful because of the 
shared savings that aligns all parties with the incentive to maximize such savings. 
 
Questions arose regarding economics, project cost, and net present value. Mr. Phipps 
responded as follows:  
 
The economics are evaluated on net cost savings to RMLD with minimal risk. The RMLD 
drew upon experience from the existing battery storage system at Station 3. Ms. O’Brien 
stated that people are contacting RMLD for experience and expertise with battery storage.   
The Department modeled a conservative analysis based on Station 3’s system information; 
the average number of times the battery was discharged over the past year; and what can 
be assumed from the cost of transmission and capacity etc. The net present value has not 
been calculated; however, the working assumption is that there will be a 23% net savings 
of at least $200 K annually. 
 
Ms. O’Brien said that the RMLD has a third party that calls the peak a day ahead. This 
analysis is helpful for 85% or higher on the peak for transmission and capacity.  
 
Capacity and transmission costs are charged to the RMLD by the rate at a particular point in 
time and the load during peak hour. Although the rate is controlled externally, the load at 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

5 
 

peak hour can be reduced by the implementation of Peak Shredding programs, such as the 
battery being discharged during peak hours which reduces the load and results in cost 
savings / avoided cost. With the battery in place, the RMLD will pay on average $900K - 
$1M less for capacity and transmission. Once that avoided cost and shared savings are 
realized, the RMLD will keep ~ 25% of the savings and share the remaining 75% with the 
system owner (Kearsarge). 
 
Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Stempeck, move that the Board of 
Commissioners, contingent on the recommendation of the Citizens’ Advisory Board, vote to 
accept the General Manager’s recommendation to contract with Kearsarge Energy under an 
energy storage PPA with shared savings, associated with a new 5 MW, 10 MWH battery 
system to be installed at a Fordham Road, Wilmington, MA, site, pending final interconnect 
study and appropriate permitting. 
 
Motion Carried (5:0:0) (5 in favor) Roll Call: Chair Coulter, Aye; Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Mr. 
Stempeck, Aye; Mr. Talbot, Aye; Ms. Bita, Aye. 
 
RMLD Wholesale Energy Forecast (Slide 4) 
Mr. Phipps provided a general layout of RMLD’s wholesale energy cost/forecast and reported 
on the graph titled “snapshot of current RMLD portfolio”.  
 
Mr. Phipps said the purple line represents all RMLD’s current contracts in $/MWH, forecasted 
over time. RMLD’s total energy cost including transmission, capacity, and certificate 
retirements is ~ $90 – $103 per MWH depending on variables. Open market costs are 
dependent on various factors; this line is above RMLD’s average contract line.  
 
RMLD’s ability to structure long term contracts is an advantageous in keeping costs stable 
and below open market prices. This contrasts with IOUs who can only contract in six-month 
blocks. The difference between the solid and dotted lines is the sale of certificates that are 
tied to a particular resource. Over time the solid lines merge with the dotted lines as Policy 
30 and the Climate Law cause the RMLD to retire more of the associated certificates and sell 
fewer of those certificates. 
 
Mr. Phipps noted that Offshore wind will likely drive the portfolio cost of wind to $70-$80 / 
MWH. 
 
 

6. Cultural Survey (Taken out of order)  
Ms. Caroline Fisher introduced herself and provided an update on the use of a Cultural 
Survey at RMLD. Ms. Fisher is a culture/leadership consultant and facilitator; over the last 
25 years has worked with large publicly traded electric power companies as well as small 
power rural electric cooperatives and municipals.   
 
The Concept of Culture  
This industry is constantly evolving, which contributes to the need for culture change within 
organizations to keep up with the continuously evolving demands outside of the 
organizations (customers, technology advances, etc.). Every organization has a culture 
whether by design or default; it is the way an organization works together to accomplish 
objectives and goals. Culture is measurable, manageable, changeable, and directly linked to 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

6 
 

everything that is measured. Culture starts at the top, but importantly does not end at the 
top; Everyone throughout the organization impacts the culture. 
 
Steps To Understanding and Evaluating Company Culture 
The first step is taking a snapshot, gathering data, and seeing where the culture is now. 
This will provide a baseline to make informed choices throughout the entirety of the 
process. Ms. Fischer said that the collection of data in the organization in combination with 
the voices of RMLD’s people, can identify what is serving the Department’s future and what 
needs to be addressed, especially in times of transition or leadership change.  
 
Today (Slide 3) 
All employees participate in and have a voice.  

 
Understanding Business Culture (Slide 4) 
Ms. Fischer discussed the definition of business culture. This involves understanding where 
the organization is going; establishing a future view; identifying the strategies in place and 
developing goals to support those strategies. It is crucial that the workforce can align 
towards the Department’s goals; this ensures that their work is purposeful and meaningful.  

 
Ms. Fischer provided examples of things to consider when thinking about culture: 

• Is communication solely within teams, divisions, or silos?  
• Does the communication create real work results across the silos?  
• What happens when mistakes are made? 
• Employee Development  
• How decisions are made translates into how things are done, which will be 

measured.  
 

Why “Culture” Why Now at RMLD (Slide 5) 
The metrics being measured in the culture will reveal how the RMLD is positioned to move 
forward. 

Why “Culture” Why Now (Slide 6) 
Focusing on culture is particularly important in today’s world; it is about working differently, 
not working harder.  

 
Creating the “We” at RMLD (Slide 7) 
Organizations tend to gravitate towards the small “we”, department vs. department or team 
vs. team. Shifting to focus on culture is about bolstering the bigger “we”.  
 
Why “Culture”? Why Now? (Slide 8)  
A company’s culture will either support overall success or prevent it from moving forward. 

 
Looking through Different Windows (Slide 9)  
RMLD, like many other organizations, will show consistent cultural patterns across the 
organization with subcultural differences that occur from division to division and level to 
level. Identifying similarities and differences within this can allow for organizations to 
provide the best support as possible.  

  
The Denison Cultural Model (Slide 10) 
Ms. Fischer reported on the “four phases when creating a high-performance culture”. 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

7 
 

 
Ms. Fischer highlighted the following points:   

• The direction that the organization is going determines the culture that is needed.  
• What kind of clarity is there about that direction throughout the organization? How is 

that shared (strategies, visions, goals)? 
• The alignment of employees with where the organization is going.  
• Do employees have appropriate capabilities? 
• How do employees work in teams?  
• What degree are people empowered to do the best work each day.  
• The ability to adapt 
• Consistencies, systems, and processes in the organization allow for movement in an 

efficient and focused way. 
 

The Denison Survey (Slide 11)  
The cultural survey measures behaviors: how things are done and to what degree certain 
behaviors align with company values such as reliability, quality, safety, employee and 
customer satisfaction and innovation. The survey contains sixty-items. The scale uses a one 
to five rating system, combined with written questions. The questions are customizable. 
Scores are provided in a percentile fashion and examine how RMLD stands in relation to 
similar functioning organizations. 

 
The survey is implemented by Cultural Solutions. The survey is performed with 
confidentiality and anonymity. Data is provided in an aggregated form to show the 
emerging patterns and themes. These emerging patters influence the action taken.  

 
Ms. Fischer said the survey is not an employee satisfaction survey; it is a culture survey.    
The survey measures to what degree an organization is set up to function safely, with 
reliability, and with quality as it moves forward. 

 
Ideal Goals of an Employee Survey Process (Slides 12 – 16)  
Basic goals of the survey process include identifying areas of strengths and areas of 
weaknesses that need to be addressed.  
 
Ms. Fischer cited the following examples of survey process goals:   

• Understanding what drives an organization that only communicates in silos.   
• Understanding what is blocking clarity in terms of where the organization is going.  
• Understanding the root cause of an organization’s difficulty with change.  
• This process opens lines of communication, which can lead to improved teamwork 

and relationships  
 
Denison Organizational Culture Survey: SAMPLE (Slide 17)  
Ms. Fisher provided a sample survey and report for demonstrative purposes. The results 
snapshot (included in the report) shows the survey findings of the sample power 
organization.  
 
Ms. Fischer discussed how the survey, and results are presented. Ms. Fischer noted that she 
is in the process of customizing the survey for RMLD. 
 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

8 
 

Mr. Stempeck commented that the RMLD is facing a General Manager that will be leaving 
and he does not think it is appropriate at this time to conduct a survey without a new 
General Manager in place. 
 
Mr. Talbot said that he would like to see the survey questions. This was requested by the 
Board last June. Mr. Talbot would like to see a survey instrument upon which the Board can 
decide on as a commission. Ms. O’Brien said that in June when the goal to perform a survey 
was assigned, it was to hire a consultant to develop an employee survey in early 2022. It is 
on schedule. 
 
Ms. Fischer responded that currently there is a survey that is being customized into RMLD’s 
language. The time to capture the most current state is before the new GM comes on so 
that person can hit the ground running with the added benefit of the survey data.  
 
Mr. Talbot requested to see where the survey is now and that it be sent to the commission 
members. Mr. Talbot suggested at the next meeting the Board can decide on the content 
and timeline.  
 
Mr. Talbot asked if there a narrative report that is produced? Ms. Fischer responded that she 
does a debrief with the Board and provides a summary of the written responses to the 
questions with a recommendation.  
 
Ms. Bita asked a question regarding length and detail; Ms. Fischer said the survey takes 
twelve to fifteen minutes. 
 
Chair Coulter said he is in favor of moving forward with the survey as fast as possible. Chair 
Coulter stated that participation is key; promoting the survey and stressing the importance 
to employees is on the RMLD staff.   
 
A question arose regarding confidentiality; Ms. Fischer responded that written data can be 
handled in multiple ways to protect anonymity and confidentiality.  
 
Ms. Fischer said that communication around the implementation of the survey is the 
foremost important aspect; Cultural Solutions Group provides counsel around that. 
Managing the meaning of the survey is paramount. it is Cultural Solution’s job to garner the 
most valid data possible. 
 
Vice Chair Pacino said that in the past the commission did a survey with no follow through, 
which had a negative impact on the employees. If the Board sees the questions, perhaps 
they could better assess the timing of the survey. There needs to be a plan so that there is 
follow up on the survey.  

 
7. Engineering & Operations Report  

Mr. Jaffari reported on supply chain issues and the related effects on the RMLD, in terms of 
lead time and the pricing for transformers. The COVID pandemic has negatively impacted 
and accelerated the supply chain issues on a global scale. This impact is not exclusive to 
RMLD, it includes but is not limited to, manufacturing, transportation, distribution, and 
retail. According to experts, the supply chain issue could extend beyond 2025. 

 
Transformers Lead Time/Pricing (Slide 4) 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

9 
 

Mr. Jaffari reported on the RMLD bid opening last week for transformers. There is an 
increase in transformer pricing (up to 528%) from CY21 to CY22. Transformers are used 
daily for construction, system maintenance, and capital improvements. The lead time has 
increased from 18-32 weeks (CY21) to 22-102 weeks (CY22). Transformer bid submissions 
include base pricing with the stipulation of no commitment for pricing until the time of 
delivery, which may include additional costs. Manufacturers cannot commit on the delivery 
timeframe and the submitted changes provided by bidders must conform to 30B bidding 
requirements. 

 
Supply Chain Impact on Maintenance & Capital Projects (Slide 5) 
Mr. Jaffari pointed out the stock amount and impact on capital projects.  
 
RMLD will be implementing a business mitigation plan and solutions to counterbalance this 
new challenge and increase the resilience in the supply chain. This includes a business 
contingency plan; risk management analysis; intelligent order management (better 
management of stock inventory and ordering); and intelligent workflow.  
 
Supply chain costs are directly impacting the price of raw materials, resulting in higher cost 
of all products used in the power industry.  Projected price increases are expected to reach 
the following: oil 59%, carbon, steel, and aluminum 50%, freight charges 44%, labor 
15.5% and electrical steel 25%.  These factors are forcing RMLD to slow down the 
implementation of capital improvement projects to maintain adequate inventory by year 
end.   
 
New Strategy – Transformer Replacement (Slide 6) 
The RMLD is developing a new strategy to meet the upcoming challenges. Prior strategy of 
transformer replacement and inspection will be modified. The annual transformer 
replacement target of 180 will be modified to less than 100; transformer replacement will 
be geared to aged / overloaded conditions only. Priority will be shifted to transformers 
leaking or seeping oil and emergencies.  
 
Transformers used in construction may be returned to stock for refurbishment. Transformer 
refurbishment companies (New York, Texas, Midwest) will be utilized to mitigate the supply 
shortage. The utilization category for transformers in CY22 will be refocused. Due to market 
price volatility, RMLD is reaching out to other MLPs to create bulk transformer purchases. 
RMLD would benefit by this strategy. This plan will be continuously modified based on what 
the market dictates. The historic price increases in CY22 were not anticipated ($700 K 
budgeted amount for transformers). Based on the last bid results, RMLD will be over budget 
by $1.2m. 

 
A question arose regarding the root cause of the supply chain challenges. Mr. Jaffari stated 
that the demand is high, and the supply is low. Supply chain issues are caused by backlog 
of major suppliers, of major ports, and shipping containers entering the United States. 
Customs agents, the transportation industry, and manufacturers are working around the 
clock to catch up. The transportation industry is not adequately staffed to transport the 
products and raw materials, which results in the delay of materials to manufacturers. 
Existing issues with customs around materials imported from India and China also play a 
role.   

 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

10 
 

Chair Coulter stated that the same issues are impacting IOUs (Investor-Owned Utilities). All 
available inventory was immediately purchased; from building switches first to 
transformers. Anyone not in line today for a transformer will realistically face a minimum 
wait time of six months. RMLD needs to alter its transformer purchasing process; if the 
Department is not in the queue customers will not receive the timely service they require. 
Projects could be held off based on the lack of inventory within the next six months. 
 
Ms. O’Brien provided the commodity impacts: carbon, steel, copper, oil, transformer 
regulators, switchgears, cost of raw materials pricing, freight costs, types of freight 
availability and labor, manufacturing labor including customs – lack of Customs staffing, 
electrical steel both grain- oriented for transformer cores, and non-oriented for EVs. There 
is only one core steel transformer manufacturer in the United States and five globally, oil 
staffing levels and national security are the impacts.  
 
Ms. O’Brien contacted NEPPA for the municipals to put in an aggregated bid to get into a 
queue. Currently, potential bidders may not take quotes because they are 100 weeks out. 
An aggregated bid is a possible solution as it takes the legislative avenue to the government 
where there can be a shift of funding and refurbishment. Ms. O’Brien will send an insightful 
presentation from one of RMLD’s vendors. 
 
Mr. Jaffari said that the RMLD increased its transformer inventory in anticipation of the 
upcoming issues; the supply should carry RMLD to the year end. RMLD needs to double up 
ordering to get in the manufacturers production queue for the next year. Chair Coulter 
stressed that it is extremely important to get in the queue for manufacturing capacity. 
 

 
8. RMLD Procurement Requests Requiring Board 

IFP 2021-28 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Site Construction and Installation 
There was no discussion regarding this bid. 
 
Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Stempeck, that bid IFB 2021-28 for 
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Site Construction and Installation be awarded to: Coviello 
Electric & General Contracting Co., Inc. for $95,000.00 pursuant to M.G.L., c. 30 § 39M, as 
the lowest responsible and eligible bidder, on the recommendation of the General Manager. 
 
Motion Passed: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Ms. Bita, Aye; Mr. 
Stempeck, Aye; Mr. Talbot, Aye; and Chair Coulter, Aye.  

 
IFP 2022-01 – Trouble Truck with Trade-In 
Mr. Talbot asked how many bids were received. Mr. Jaffari responded the bid was sent to 
eighteen companies; there were two respondents, James A. Kiley Company and Altec 
Industries, Inc. Kiley was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The Truck 10 traded 
value assessed by Kiley is $4.5 K.  
 
In response to a question regarding Altec, Mr. Jaffari stated they did not complete the 
requisite documentation required, had numerous exceptions, and a higher cost.  
 
Discussion ensued and questions arose regarding trade-in verses auction. Mr. Jaffari 
responded with the following:  
  



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

11 
 

Pricing is better with trade ins; auctions have longer wait times and pricing may be lower. 
Despite a shortage of trucks in the used vehicle market, this trouble truck has high mileage, 
as it is in continuous use and requires more maintenance. Thus, a trade in is less complex.  
 
Chair Coulter said that with the trade in, the vehicle will stay in place for ~ one year until 
delivery of the new replacement vehicle. 
 
Mr. Talbot asked if the contract can be tweaked to give the option of withdrawing the trade 
in at RMLD’s discretion. This would allow to either trade in at $4.5 K or hold it back.  
 
Mr. Jaffari said that the pricing may have been predicted on trade in value; the truck will be 
put on the secondary market, and this is calculated in the amount. Mr. Jaffari said that he 
will check into the suggestions made. 
 
Vice Chair Pacino pointed out that the nonresponsive bidder offered a trade in of $7K 
whereas the responsive bidder only offered $4.5 K. Can the $7 K be matched?  
 
Mr. Stempeck suggested RMLD see what the truck will sell for on the secondary market and 
said that RMLD is not in the truck fixing business, it is the utility business. Mr. Stempeck 
cautioned the use of resources time for tracking things down. Chair Coulter suggested 
finding a truck on the market with the same make and mileage to compare the cost, 
including another year’s worth of miles. Chair Coulter said that if the RMLD gets a third of 
the price on the open market, it is a solid deal.  

 
Chair Coulter suggested to table the motion to the next meeting based on the information 
requested. Bid deferred to the next meeting. 
Note motion tabled to next meeting, no vote taken - Suggested Motion: Move that proposal 
IFP 2022-01 for one (1) Trouble Truck with Trade-In be awarded to: James A. Kiley 
Company for $252,419.001, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 164, § 56D, on the recommendation of 
the General Manager. 

 
IFB 2022-04 – Home Energy Assessment Program 
Mr. Phipps presented on the Home Energy Assessment Program Bid. Mr. Phipps said the 
residential energy assessment program has been in place for many years; Energy New 
England performed the audits in the past. The prior contract expired at the end of last year. 
With the new contract, in-person audits (preferred method) costs $185 per audit, and the 
virtual audits costs $150 per audit. Mr. Phipps compared this with the prior contract; in-
person audits cost $176 per audit. Mr. Phipps said that the in-person audit will take two 
thirds of the funds with other options filling the balance.  
 
Mr. Phipps said that fifteen bids were sent out with one respondent. CEG was interested, but 
is Mass Save focused and Abode was not interested. 
 
Mr. Talbot said that he had the Mass Save residential energy audit through the gas company 
and they pay for attic insulation. Energy New England’s version does not do that.  
Mr. Phipps stated that RMLD is putting together a weatherization program. RMLD’s intention 
is to have an insulation program linked to the air source heat pump program and is working 
through the economics of this. This will be brought to the BOC this summer.  

 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

12 
 

Mr. Talbot asked if the audits include air tests to verify if there is air leakage. Mr. Phipps 
said air door tests can be done at an additional cost of $200 per test.  
 
Chair Coulter asked if there is a backlog of audits. Mr. Phipps responded yes; January - 
March requests will be handled in April. Chair Coulter explained what Mass Save entails. It is 
more expansive than the RMLD due to the nature of its funding. 
 
Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Talbot, that bid IFB 2022-04 for Home 
Energy Assessment Program be awarded to: Energy New England, LLC. for $82,500.00, 
pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30B, as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, on the 
recommendation of the General Manager. This is a three-year contract. 
 
Motion Passed: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Mr. Talbot, Aye; Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Ms. 
Bita, Aye; Mr. Stempeck, Aye; and Chair Coulter, Aye. 
 

9. Scheduling  
• April 21, 2022 will be the next Board of Commissioner’s Meeting.  
• It was agreed that the Board would not attend the CAB meeting on April 4, 2022.  
• The GM Evaluation and Review will be discussed at the April 21, 2022, meeting.  

 
Chair Coulter said that the transformer meeting needs to be held immediately. Failing to get 
into the queue now could push back the supply 30 days.  
 
Ms. O’Brien said she is checking on Chapter 164 regarding open-ended bids, relative to 
legality.   
 
Chair Coulter reiterated that the RMLD needs to get in line. The factors behind this are out 
of RMLD’s control. There are unprecedented delays affecting RMLD’s ability to provide 
service. The current situation is unheard of in this industry. 
 
Ms. O’Brien said RMLD is waiting for the CAB to vote on April 4, as the bid is 1M over 
budget.  
  
Chair Coulter noted that the cost of materials is uncontrollable, when fuel costs go up 200% 
there is no question that things will be over budget.  
 
Discussion ensued on a date to hold the Transformer bid meeting.  
 
Once the CAB and Board vote to approve, Ms. O’Brien will bring this supply issue to the 
attention of NEPPA and APPA and work towards an aggregated solution.   
 
Mr. Jaffari stated that the RMLD cannot double up the order because it impacts the price. 
Mr. Jaffari said RMLD has a strategy in place to manage the crisis, and he feels comfortable 
with the plan.  

 
Discussion ensued on developing a motion with a price, contingent on recommendation of 
the CAB.  
 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

13 
 

Mr. Small agreed with the contingent motion and said that Danvers opened the bid in 
January and awarded the bid prior to supply chain issues. Regardless, the delivery time was 
pushed out to May. Danvers also faces an issue with storage.  
 
Mr. Jaffari noted that these prices are locked in 30 days.  
 
Vice Chair Pacino asked what the RMLD plans to buy specifically. Mr. Jaffari responded that 
the Department will be purchasing pad mounted and pole mounted transformers.  
 
The Board agreed on a motion and voted as follows:  
Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Stempeck, that the RMLD Board of 
Commissioners, contingent on the recommendation of the Citizens’ Advisory Board, vote to 
accept the General Manager’s recommendation due to unprecedented and emergency 
situations, to award BID IFP 2022-10 and IFP 2022-09 for pad mounted and pole mounted 
transformers from various vendors and distributors at ~ $2m in accordance with M.G.L.c. 
164. 
 
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Mr. Stempeck, Aye; Mr. 
Talbot, Aye; Ms. Bita, Aye; Chair Coulter, Aye. 

 
10. GM Goals and Evaluation Taken out of order  

Ms. O’Brien asked when the topic of her raise will be discussed.  
 
Discussion ensued to schedule a time to address the GM’s raise.  
 
Mr. Stempeck suggested a separate meeting to give the Board time to look over Ms. 
O’Brien’s evaluation materials and receive guidelines from the Chair. This will allow the 
Board to form conclusions and make informed recommendations.   
 
The agenda item “GM Goals and Evaluation” will be moved to a subsequent meeting.   

 
11. Executive Session  

Vice Chair Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Stempeck, move that the Board of 
Commissioners go into Executive Session pursuant to Massachusetts G.L. c.164 section 
47D, exemption from public records and open meeting requirements in certain instances, to 
discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with respect thereto 
and to consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if the chair declares 
that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the 
public body; and return to regular session, for the sole purpose of adjournment.  Note: Roll 
call vote required. 
 
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Mr. Stempeck, Aye; Ms. 
Bita, Aye; Mr. Talbot, Aye; Chair Coulter, Aye. 
   

12. Adjournment 
At 10:06 PM Vice Chair Pacino made motion, seconded by Mr. Stempeck, move that the 
Board of Commissioners adjourn regular session. 
 
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 (5 in favor) Roll Call: Vice Chair Pacino, Aye; Mr. Stempeck, Aye; Ms. 
Bita, Aye; Mr. Talbot, Aye; Chair Coulter, Aye. 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

14 
 

 
Documents Used:   
2022-03-24 RMLD Board of Commissioners Regular Session Packet  
Board Packet Attachment 1 “Approval of Board Minutes” (Item 3)  
Board Packet Attachment 2 “Integrated Resources Report “(Item 5) 
Board Packet Attachment 3 “Engineering and Operations Report” (Item 7) 
Board Packet Attachment 4 “Procurement Requests Requiring Board Approval (Item 8) 
 
Materials Available but Not Discussed  
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE   

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Communications Update

Presented to the 
Board of Commissioners and 

Citizens’ Advisory Board 

21 July 2022



Social Media Revival 

• RMLD using Facebook and Twitter platforms as of July 11
• Facebook inactive for 5 years
• Twitter used only for outages, Shred the Peak

• RMLD to consistently post content including:
• Mix of scheduled seasonal/evergreen posts 

(Tip Tuesdays, Program Spotlights)
• Timely news, answers to comments/inquiries when appropriate, community news, 

announcements
• RMLD to organically grow presence by 

• Regular posting
• Adding call to action buttons on website, newsletters
• Encouraging “likes” at community events

• Once presence is established, RMLD to explore cross-promotion opportunities 
for further growth

2



New Customer Welcome Letters

• RMLD to mail out monthly welcome letters to new residential customers
• Will augment current welcome email 

• Working with town officials in Reading, Wilmington, Lynnfield, and 
North Reading on town-specific inserts

• Monthly letters will also be tailored to promote programs and events
• RMLD to send letters to C&I customers as part of Phase 2

3



Ongoing Efforts

• Media relations: proactive pitches to consumer reporters offering 
RMLD as a source for energy-efficient technologies including heat 
pumps and EV chargers

• Special events:
• EV Car Show at Wilmington Farmers Market (8/14)
• Public Power Open House (10/6)

• Public education: Air Source Heat Pump Q&A (8/10), webinars
• Media outreach for events/programs

• Example: Ribbon cutting/promotion of newly installed EV chargers 

4



Thank You



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

POLICY REVIEW  

ATTACHMENT 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

POLICY 9: PROCUREMENT  

 
 
 
 
 

  



 
 

RMLD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING  

JULY 21, 2022  

POLICY 9: PROCUREMENT SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS  

 
In accordance with the Board’s periodic policy review, please find attached the review package 
for Policy 9: Procurement (Revision 7). 

 
Included are the following three components:  
• Policy 9: Procurement Summary and Highlights (This Page).  
• Updated Policy 9: Procurement (Revision 7).  
• Policy 9: Procurement (Revision 6) with red lines.   
 
SUMMARY  
Policy 9: Procurement, was revised to simplify and streamline the process for time and cost 
efficiency without sacrificing intent of competitive bidding. Many of the sections were removed 
and the remaining sections were refined.  

 
REVISION HIGHLIGHTS  
Section 1: Purpose  
• Title was changed from “Applicability and Purpose” to “Purpose” 
• Removed Section A. (applicability) as this section is not needed.  

 
Section II: Internal Review and Approval  
• Title was changed from “Authority” to “Internal Review and Approval”  
• Subsection II: A 

o Subsection A was added to identify the GM approval process: GM or designee shall 
approve pricing and T&Cs of all procurement contracts. RMLD may develop 
standards T&Cs upon GM preapproval.  

• Subsection II: B    
o Language refined; “in excess” added. Board can review and comment on 

procurements with an estimated value more than 50K.   
o Removed verbiage on electrical equipment  
o Modified verbiage around emergency procurement: “If GM determines an urgency 

for goods and services” and “GM shall inform the Board of such procurement 
circumstance as soon as reasonably practicable.” 

o Change orders to existing projects with a value excess of $50K will be reported to 
the Board as reasonably practicable. 

o Removed repetitive verbiage and cleaned up grammar.  



 
 

 
Section III: Vendor Relations  
• Section III was removed.   *  This can be a separate operating procedure if needed  
 
Section IV: Vendor Lists  
• Section IV was removed.  *  This can be a separate operating procedure if needed 

 
 Section V: Procurement Process  
• Subsection V: A 

o Verbiage was removed and the following verbiage was added:  
o “RMLD will follow applicable statutory procurement process based on nature and 

cost.”  
o Procurement involving general supplies and services not subject to a statutory 

procurement process will follow G.L c. 30b.  
o Exemptions to 30B were noted – electrical equipment, materials, and supplies as 

well as, power supplies and that the RMLD shall use sound business practices    
 

• Subsection V: B 
o Verbiage consolidated regarding  G.L.c. 30B 
o Subsection V: B: 2 Added “cooperative contracts pursuant to G.L. 30B, § 22.”  RMLD 

is allowed to purchase under statewide contracts, and group contracts, such as 
Sourcewell, Massachusetts Higher Education Consortium, and others.  

o Subsection V: B: 3 “other than electric equipment “was removed; verbiage regarding 
“cooperative contract” was added; modified verbiage that competitive solicitations 
or reverse auctions will follow 30B; modified verbiage that GM can modify or waive 
competitive solicitation procedures pending circumstance and 30B compliance 

o Subsection V: B: 4 Removed verbiages regarding vendors and RMLD T&Cs  
o Subsection V: B: 5 This section was removed. * This can be a separate operating 

procedure if needed 
 

 
 

  



1 
638778_2 

RMLD Policy No. 9 
PROCUREMENT 

Revision No. 7 Commission Vote/Effective Date ____________ 

___________________ ______________________ 
Interim General Manager/Date Next Review Date 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to implement good business practices to ensure that
RMLD’s procurements are cost efficient, timely, meet the needs of RMLD, and
comply with applicable laws.

II. INTERNAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL

A. The General Manager, or his/her designee, shall approve all pricing and terms
and conditions of all RMLD procurement contracts.  RMLD may develop and
use standard terms and conditions that have been preapproved by the
General Manager.

B. The RMLD Board of Commissioners shall be given the opportunity to review and
comment on procurements having an estimated value in excess of $50,000.
Provided, however, if the General Manager determines that an urgency for
the goods or services exists, then the RMLD may proceed with the procurement
and the General Manager shall inform the Board of Commissioners of such
procurement and the circumstances as soon as reasonably practicable.
Change orders to existing projects having a value in excess of $50,000 will be
reported to the Board as soon as reasonably practical.

III. PROCUREMENT PROCESS

A. RMLD shall follow the applicable statutory procurement process based on the
nature of the procurement and estimated cost (e.g., G.L. c. 164, § 56D, G.L. c.
30, § 39M, G.L. c. 149, §§ 44A, et seq.

B. For procurements involving general supplies or services that are not subject to
a statutory procurement process, RMLD will follow the procedures in G.L. c. 30B,
to the extent practicable. For the avoidance of doubt, the procurement of
electric equipment, materials, and supplies, and power supplies shall not be
subject to Chapter 30B procedures.  If the procurement of the particular goods
or services is subject to an exemption under G.L. c. 30B, RMLD shall use sound
business practices to procure such goods or services regardless of their value.
This policy shall not be construed as an acceptance of G.L. c. 30B, as set forth

July 21, 2022

July 21, 2025



2 
638778_2 

in G.L. c. 30B, § 1(b)(14). The following Guidelines shall be used when prices are 
being solicited from a vendor:  
 

1. Purchases under $10,000.00 will be made using sound business 
practices. 
 

2. Purchases between $10,000.00 and $50,000 shall be made either: (a) 
from a statewide contract or (b) by soliciting written quotations using 
a written purchase description from no fewer than three (3) persons 
who customarily provide the supply or service, or (c) cooperative 
contracts pursuant to G.L. c. 30B, § 22.  The following information shall 
be recorded and retained by RMLD: the names and addresses of all 
persons from whom quotations were sought, the names of the 
persons submitting quotations and the date and amount of each 
quotation.  The contract will be awarded to the responsible vendor 
who can provide the goods or services in a timely manner at the 
lowest cost. 

 
3. Purchases estimated to exceed $50,000 will be made from a 

statewide contract, a cooperative contract or after a formal, 
competitive sealed bid or proposal procedure or a reverse auction.  
For competitive solicitations or reverse auctions, RMLD will follow 
substantially the same procedures set forth in G.L. c. 30B, §§ 5, 6, or 
6A, as applicable.  The competitive solicitation procedures may be 
waived or modified by the General Manager depending on the 
circumstances. The procurement of goods also will be advertised in 
accordance with G.L. c. 164, § 56D. 













POLICY 23: DRESS STANDARDS 



RMLD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

JULY 21, 2022  

POLICY 23: DRESS STANDARDS

In accordance with the Board’s periodic policy review, please find attached the review package for Policy 
23: Dress Standards (Revision 3). 

Included are the following two components: 

• Policy 23: Dress Standards Summary and Highlights.
• Finalized Policy 23: Dress Standards (Revision 3).

SUMMARY 
No revisions, modifications, or removals were made from Policy 23: Dress Standards (Revision 2) to 
Policy 23: Dress Standards(Revision 3). The reason for Revision 3 is to confirm that the policy was 
reviewed and approved by the Board per the three-year periodic policy review.  



RMLD Policy No. 23 
DRESS STANDARDS 

Revision No. 3 Commission Vote Date___________ 

______________________  Next Review Date_______________ 
Interim General Manager 

Reading Municipal Light Department employees are required to dress (clothing and 
footwear} in an appropriate manner that is consistent with their work environment, 
Collective Bargaining Agreements ("CBAs"), RMLD Safety Policies and Procedures, OSHA 
Standards, ARC Flash Study, and applicable standards, policies, and procedures 
required for the task at hand, and in a manner that is not distracting to other 
employees or customers. Employees should take pride in their appearance by looking 
neat and clean at all times, keeping in mind that they are representatives of the RMLD. 
It is recognized that some RMLD employees work in an office environment and others 
work in a field environment. 

OFFICE ENVIRONMENT: "Business casual" attire is generally appropriate for the office 
work environment, however some RMLD meetings and/or events, on site or off site, may 
require more formal "business" attire, e.g., suit. 

FIELD ENVIRONMENT: Some clothing and footwear requirements are set forth in the 
applicable CBA for certain field job descriptions. However, the CBAs may not 
specifically address other jobs that require field work. In such instances, employees 
performing those jobs are still required to dress appropriately for their work environment. 
This would include any office environment employees who may visit a temporary field 
site, garage, warehouse, and other field-like environment. 

In addition to the general categories of distracting and inappropriate, the following is a 
sample of clothing and footwear that shall not be worn; 

• Ripped, tattered, torn or stained;
• Any shirts or sweaters with slogans or large pictures;
• Micro skirts, micro dresses, or midriff apparel;
• Leggings, jeggings, etc., unless worn with dresses or long tunic tops that hit at the

mid-thigh or lower;
• Clothing that reveals undergarments;
• Shorts, sweatpants, sweat shirts, track pants (unless using or traveling to or from

the on-premises gym); and
• Crocs, flip flops or sneakers.

In addition to violating this policy, some non-compliance may also be considered a 
safety violation. Violations will be subject to progressive discipline, up to and 
including termination. Any questions regarding this policy shall be directed to the 
division head or General Manager. 

July 21, 2022

July 21, 2025



 

 

 

 

HYDRO QUEBEC PHASE 1/PHASE 11 CONVERTER   

ATTACHMENT 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HQ Phase I/Phase II 
Converter

Presented to RMLD CAB and Board of Commissioners

July 21, 2022

Charles J Underhill

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



HQ Phase I/Phase II Converter

 HQ Phase I/Phase II HVDC Converter facility is a high-voltage transmission 
interconnection and DC converter station operating between Hydro Quebec 
and New England.

 HQ Phase I began operations in 1986

 HQ Phase II began operations in 1990

 HVDC Converter allows for import of energy from Hydro Quebec under 
separate contract(s).

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



History

 Purchased 3.203 MWs of Phase I (Comerford) through MMWEC in 1976
 Benefits and liabilities, not ownership

 Station decommissioned and dismantled in 2012

 Delivery point transferred to Sandy Pond and integrated with Phase II

 Purchased 6.191 MWs of Phase II from National Grid in 1986
 Support Agreement with National Grid extended through October 31, 2040

 Support Agreement includes ~$780,000 for RMLD of planned capital improvements 

 $780,000 payments spread over four (4) years; 2028-2031

 Support payments cover both Phase I and Phase II entitlements

 Total entitlement in HQ HVDC Project is 9.394 MWs

 Selling “Use Rights” to N-Star for $30,788/month

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



Going Forward Options

 Continue 3rd party sale of “Use Rights”

 Need to negotiate new sale contract after 12/31/2023

 Assemble coalition from among HQ Phase I/Phase II participants to take 100 
MW minimum energy from HQ

 Consider other resource options:

 Pumped storage

 Offset capacity & transmission costs

 Bid into ISO-NE wholesale energy market

 Match production to load profile to charge EVs and other electric consumption

 Purchase additional Project capacity

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



Key Actions

 Short term:

 Identify magnitude of potential need for non-carbon dispatchable resources

 Storage alternatives for non-dispatchable resources

 Future load profile and magnitude

 Monitor forward price curves for carbon and market energy

 Identify potential for additional HQ energy

 Survey existing participants for interest in selling Project shares

 Open discussions with Hydro Quebec and National Grid for additional capacity

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



Key Actions (continued)

 Long term:

 Contract additional capacity with HQ

 Work with vendors to shape use options

 Verify future of carbon generation options:

 Watson

 Stony Brook Peaking

 Stony Brook Intermediate

7/15/2022IRD - Energy Services Drive > Administration > Contracts > Power Supply > HQ Phase I and II > HQ Presentation.ppt



 

 

 

 

RMLD PROCUREMENT REQUESTS  

REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL 

ATTACHMENT 5 

  























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MATERIALS AVAILABLE BUT NOT DISCUSSED 

 



1

Erica Morse

From: Erica Morse
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 8:55 AM
To: Erica Morse
Subject: AP and Payroll Questions for the 22-7-21  Board of Commissioners Book

AP 
From June 10, 2022, to July 8, 2022, there were no Commissioner questions. 
 
Payroll: 
From June 13, 2022, to July 11, 2022, there were no Commissioner questions. 
 
 
 
 
Erica Morse  
Executive Assistant 
Reading Municipal Light Department 
O: 781‐942‐6489 
C: 617‐791‐3304 
www.rmld.com 

 
 



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Statement of Net Assets 
5/31/2022 

2022 2021
ASSETS

Current:
    Unrestricted Cash  $     19,569,558  $     22,082,143 
    Restricted Cash         32,769,717         29,358,591 
    Restricted Investments           2,563,456           2,705,221 
    Receivables, Net           9,922,167           7,800,643 
    Prepaid Expenses           1,718,599           1,461,703 
    Inventory           2,000,731           1,908,740 
      Total Current Assets         68,544,229         65,317,041 

Noncurrent:
    Investment in Associated Companies              964,302              874,492 
    Capital Assets, Net         86,232,822         83,459,963 
      Total Noncurrent Assets         87,197,124         84,334,456 

    Deferred Outflows - Pension Plan           6,754,497           5,360,409 

TOTAL ASSETS       162,495,850       155,011,906 

LIABILITIES

Current
    Accounts Payable         11,411,943           7,575,278 
    Accrued Liabilities              285,864              245,784 
    Customer Deposits           1,587,213           1,422,288 
    Advances from Associated Companies              200,000              200,000 
    Customer Advances for Construction           2,578,075           2,330,551 
      Total Current Liabilities         16,063,094         11,773,900 

Non-current

    Accrued Employee Compensated Absences           1,955,013           2,221,737 
    Net OPEB Obligation           4,158,698           7,166,506 
    Net Pension Liability         11,954,138         12,054,935 
      Total Non-current Liabilities         18,067,849         21,443,178 

    Deferred Inflows - Pension Plan           4,327,923           2,652,103 

TOTAL LIABILITIES         38,458,866         35,869,182 

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt         86,232,822         83,459,963 
Restricted for Depreciation Fund         11,773,493           9,648,346 
Restricted for Pension Trust           6,792,231           6,590,668 
Unrestricted         19,238,437         19,443,747 
TOTAL NET POSITION       124,036,984       119,142,724 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $   162,495,850  $   155,011,906 

1 of 5



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

5/31/2022 

Month Month Year to Date Year to Date Percent
Current Year Last Year Current Year Last Year Change

Operating Revenues

    Base Revenue  $       2,115,344  $       1,945,049  $     11,898,928  $     10,899,682 9.2%
    Fuel Revenue           2,844,316           1,847,612         13,749,067           9,978,489 37.8%
    Purchased Power Capacity & Transmission           2,036,946           2,347,929         12,424,101         13,111,050 (5.2%)
    Forfeited Discounts                50,917                36,252              309,750              329,529 (6.0%)
    Energy Conservation Revenue              142,388                45,882              774,516              255,122 203.6%
    NYPA Credit               (48,474)               (86,889)             (511,945)             (491,327) 4.2%
      Total Operating Revenues           7,141,437           6,135,835         38,644,416         34,082,546 13.4%

Expenses

Power Expenes:

   547 Purchased Power Fuel           1,867,434           2,014,145         13,299,006         11,232,364 18.4%
   555 Purchased Power Capacity           1,436,585           1,442,899           6,811,708           7,295,065 (6.6%)
   565 Purchased Power Transmission           1,017,441              971,046           5,849,673           5,511,942 6.1%
      Total Purchased Power           4,321,460           4,428,090         25,960,386         24,039,371 8.0%

Operations and Maintenance Expenses:

   580 Supervision and Engineering                93,030                75,453              447,768              415,529 7.8%
   581 Station/Control Room Operators                36,418                38,463              194,015              188,373 3.0%
   582 Station Technicians                35,217                44,205              211,079              270,259 (21.9%)
   583  Line General Labor                47,859                37,476              319,018              245,910 29.7%
   586 Meter General                15,042                12,476                74,320                66,824 11.2%
   588 Materials Management                34,363                30,321              179,976              172,013 4.6%
   593 Maintenance of Lines - Overhead                27,025                36,201              141,406              145,448 (2.8%)
   593 Maintenance of Lines - Tree Trimming                  4,063                53,394              257,718              137,139 87.9%
   594 Maintenance of Lines - Underground                     165                 (5,203)                78,725                  6,499 1111.3%
   595 Maintenance of Line - Transformers                          -                15,100                45,845                59,428 (22.9%)
   598 Line General Leave Time Labor                  9,408                23,506              167,689              126,914 32.1%
      Total Operations and Maintenance Expenses              302,592              361,391           2,117,559           1,834,336 15.4%

General & Administration Expenses:

   903 Customer Collections              118,444                79,769              456,295              439,810 3.7%
   904 Uncollectible Accounts                  5,000                  8,750                25,000                43,750 (42.9%)
   916 Energy Audit                63,397                54,044              316,727              271,245 16.8%
   916 Energy Conservation              100,244                82,274              402,264              611,255 (34.2%)
   920 Administrative and General Salaries              161,194              135,472              823,688              757,745 8.7%
   921 Office Supplies and Expense                     602                  1,475                  5,792                  5,364 8.0%
   923 Outside Services - Legal                41,353                32,033              164,810              102,797 60.3%
   923 Outside Services - Contract                35,742                30,150              105,247              121,183 (13.2%)
   923 Outside Services - Education                  2,760                  2,488                22,458                  7,789 188.3%
   924 Property Insurance                32,768                33,111              185,143              196,412 (5.7%)
   925 Injuries and Damages                     650                          -                  1,750                  8,026 (78.2%)
   926 Employee Pensions and Benefits              316,955              279,963           1,855,400           1,828,028 1.5%
   930 Miscellaneous General Expense                26,329                43,626              209,453              186,613 12.2%
   931 Rent Expense                16,789                14,471                97,379                94,666 2.9%
   933 Vehicle Expenses                 22,201                28,900                88,631              121,189 (26.9%)
   933 Vehicle Expenses - Capital               (41,236)               (30,056)             (167,739)             (146,720) 14.3%
   935 Maintenance of General Plant                40,339                63,470              228,825              287,232 (20.3%)
   935 Maintenance of Building & Garage                59,698                62,127              471,505              331,443 42.3%
      Total General & Administration Expenses           1,003,230              922,065           5,292,627           5,267,828 0.5%

2 of 5



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

5/31/2022 

Month Month Year to Date Year to Date Percent
Current Year Last Year Current Year Last Year Change

Other Operating Expenses:

   403 Depreciation              421,450              406,980           2,107,250           2,034,898 3.6%
   408 Voluntary Payments to Towns              143,387              137,953              716,935              689,764 3.9%
      Total Other Expenses              564,837              544,933           2,824,186           2,724,663 3.7%
Operating Income              949,318             (120,643)           2,449,659              216,348 1032.3%

Non Operating Revenues (Expenses):

    419 Interest Income                25,219                69,004                66,794                82,887 (19.4%)
    419 Other                66,909                83,759              531,330              561,053 (5.3%)
    426 Return on Investment to Reading             (206,709)             (206,709)          (1,033,544)          (1,033,544) 0.0%
    426 Loss on Disposal                          -                          -                          -                          - 0.0%
    431 Interest Expense                 (2,005)                 (3,759)               (10,061)               (18,831) (46.6%)
      Total Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)             (116,585)               (57,705)             (445,480)             (408,436) 9.1%
Change in Net Assets              832,733             (178,348)           2,004,179             (192,088)

Net Assets at Beginning of Year       122,032,806       119,334,812       122,032,806       119,334,812 

Ending Net Assets  $   122,865,539  $   119,156,464  $   124,036,984  $   119,142,724 

3 of 5



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

5/31/2022 

Actual Budget through OVER/UNDER OVER/UNDER
Year to Date MAY 2022 $ %

Operating Revenues

    Base Revenue  $         11,898,928  $     12,541,487  $       (642,559) (5.1%)
    Fuel Revenue             13,749,067         11,050,982         2,698,085 24.4%
    Purchased Power Capacity & Transmission             12,424,101         14,764,790        (2,340,689) (15.9%)
    Forfeited Discounts                 309,750              376,245             (66,495) (17.7%)
    Energy Conservation Revenue                 774,516              829,854             (55,339) (6.7%)
    NYPA Credit                (511,945)            (440,543)             (71,402) 16.2%
      Total Operating Revenues             38,644,416         39,122,815           (478,398) (1.2%)

Expenses

Power Expenses:

   555  Purchased Power Fuel             13,299,006         10,610,439         2,688,566 25.3%
   555  Purchased Power Capacity               6,811,708           7,074,296           (262,589) (3.7%)
   565  Purchased Power Transmission               5,849,673           7,690,493        (1,840,821) (23.9%)
      Total Purchased Power             25,960,386         25,375,229            585,157 2.3%

Operations and Maintenance Expenses:

   580  Supervision and Engineering                 447,768              480,662             (32,894) (6.8%)
   581  Station/Control Room Operators                 194,015              224,559             (30,545) (13.6%)
   582  Station Technicians                 211,079              281,068             (69,990) (24.9%)
   583  Line General Labor                 319,018              468,685           (149,667) (31.9%)
   586  Meter General                   74,320               82,412               (8,092) (9.8%)
   588  Materials Management                 179,976              196,317             (16,341) (8.3%)
   593  Maintenance of Lines - Overhead                 141,406              230,094             (88,687) (38.5%)
   593  Maintenance of Lines - Tree Trimming                 257,718              378,240           (120,522) (31.9%)
   594  Maintenance of Lines - Underground                   78,725               36,725              42,000 114.4%
   595  Maintenance of Line - Transformers                   45,845              155,483           (109,638) (70.5%)
   598  Line General Leave Time Labor                 167,689              199,076             (31,388) (15.8%)
      Total Operations and Maintenance Expenses               2,117,559           2,733,322           (615,763) (22.5%)

General & Administration Expenses:

   903  Customer Collection                 456,295              490,103             (33,808) (6.9%)
   904  Uncollectible Accounts                   25,000               43,750             (18,750) (42.9%)
   916  Energy Audit                 316,727              411,367             (94,640) (23.0%)
   916  Energy Conservation                 402,264           1,017,125           (614,862) (60.5%)
   920  Administrative and General Salaries                 823,688              989,099           (165,411) (16.7%)
   921  Office Supplies and Expense                     5,792                 8,333               (2,541) (30.5%)
   923  Outside Services - Legal                 164,810              189,966             (25,156) (13.2%)
   923  Outside Services - Contract                 105,247              306,542           (201,295) (65.7%)
   923  Outside Services - Education                   22,458              137,428           (114,970) (83.7%)
   924  Property Insurance                 185,143              231,875             (46,732) (20.2%)
   925  Injuries and Damages                     1,750               10,667               (8,917) (83.6%)
   926  Employee Pensions and Benefits               1,855,400           1,592,219            263,182 16.5%
   930  Miscellaneous General Expense                 209,453              241,720             (32,267) (13.3%)
   931  Rent Expense                   97,379               88,333                9,046 10.2%
   933  Vehicle Expense                   88,631              157,917             (69,285) (43.9%)
   933  Vehicle Expense - Capital Clearing                (167,739)            (115,178)             (52,561) 45.6%
   935  Maintenance of General Plant                 228,825              297,133             (68,309) (23.0%)
   935  Maintenance of Building & Garage                 471,505              387,383              84,122 21.7%
      Total General & Administration Expenses               5,292,627           6,485,780        (1,193,153) (18.4%)

4 of 5



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

5/31/2022 

Other Operating Expenses:

   403  Depreciation               2,107,250           2,107,865                  (615) (0.0%)
   408  Voluntary Payments to Towns                 716,935              711,600                5,336 0.7%
      Total Other Expenses               2,824,186           2,819,465                4,721 0.2%

Operating Income               2,449,659           1,709,020            740,639 43.3%

Non Operating Revenues (Expenses):

    419 Interest Income                   66,794              125,000             (58,206) (46.6%)
    419 Other Income                 531,330              295,833            235,497 79.6%
    421 Intergovernment Grants                             -               37,500             (37,500) (100.0%)
    426 Return on Investment to Reading             (1,033,544)         (1,053,578)              20,034 (1.9%)
    426 Loss on Disposal -                                         (41,667)              41,667 (100.0%)
    431 Interest Expense                  (10,061) (16,667)                            6,606 (39.6%)
      Total Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)                (445,480)            (653,578)            208,097 (31.8%)

Change in Net Assets  $           2,004,179  $       1,055,442  $        948,737 89.9%

5 of 5




	22-07-21 RMLD Board Packet 7.19.pdf
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOC Agenda and Board Packet FV (002).pdf
	22-07-21 Posting Final V1.pdf
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOARD PACKET FV - NO AGENDA.pdf
	packet dividers R 07.21
	packet dividers R 07.21


	1 2022-03-24 Regular Session Minutes Board Packet.pdf
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOC Agenda and Board Packet FV (002)
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOARD PACKET FV - NO AGENDA.pdf
	packet dividers R 07.21
	2. BoC RMLD 2022-07-21 Final V2.pdf
	Communications Update
	Social Media Revival 
	New Customer Welcome Letters
	Ongoing Efforts
	Thank You�

	packet dividers R 07.21
	packet dividers R 07.21
	Policy Review  Memo 9 FV.pdf
	3-1 Policy 9 Final.pdf



	22-07-21 RMLD Board Packet 7.19
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOC Agenda and Board Packet FV (002)
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOARD PACKET FV - NO AGENDA.pdf
	3-2 Policy 9 Marked.pdf
	packet dividers R 07.21
	Policy Memo 23 FV.pdf
	3-3 Policy 23 Dress Code R3 Final.pdf
	packet dividers R 07.21
	4.HQ Presentation.pdf
	HQ Phase I/Phase II Converter
	HQ Phase I/Phase II Converter
	History
	Going Forward Options
	Key Actions
	Key Actions (continued)

	packet dividers R 07.21
	5-1.pdf
	5-2.pdf
	5-3.pdf
	packet dividers R 07.21.pdf



	22-07-21 RMLD Board Packet 7.19
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOC Agenda and Board Packet FV (002)
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOARD PACKET FV - NO AGENDA.pdf
	AP and Payroll Questions for the 22-7-21  Board of Commissioners Book.pdf



	FINANCIALS MAY 2022 (002).pdf
	BS
	P&L
	Budget over-under

	22-07-21 RMLD Board Packet 7.19
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOC Agenda and Board Packet FV (002)
	2022-07-21 RMLD BOARD PACKET FV - NO AGENDA.pdf
	Surplus.pdf






